



**KINGSTON THUNDER
BASEBALL ASSOCIATION
CONSTITUTION**

CONSTITUTION

CONTENTS

- 1.0 **ARTICLE 1:** Name of the Association
- 2.0 **ARTICLE 2:** Objectives of the Association.
- 3.0 **ARTICLE 3:** Membership and Voting at General Meetings:
 Legal Guardian Players
 Executive Directors and Officers and Team Officials
- 4.0 **ARTICLE 4:** Fiscal Year
- 5.0 **ARTICLE 5:** The Executive Committee (Board of Management)
- 6.0 **ARTICLE 6:** Meetings of the Executive Committee
- 7.0 **ARTICLE 7:** Duties of the Executive Committee (Directors)
- 8.0 **ARTICLE 8:** Duties of the Executive Officers
- 9.0 **ARTICLE 9:** Annual General Meeting
- 10.0 **ARTICLE 10:** Special Meeting General
- 11.0 **ARTICLE 11:** Nomination and Election

****Please note that all meetings shall be in accordance with Baseball Canada/Baseball Ontario/Eastern Ontario Baseball and shall be conducted according to the Roberts Rules of Order, and nothing in the Constitution and/or Policies shall be that which will lessen the Rules/Regulations of the Governing Bodies.

ARTICLE 1: NAME OF ORGANIZATION

1.01 The name of the organization shall be the Kingston Thunder Baseball Association, also referred to as "KTBA".

ARTICLE 2: OBJECTIVES OF THE ASSOCIATION

***Pursuant to the Motion passed on the 18th day of September 2006, at the Annual General Meeting, the Constitution is amended to include "the organization is carried on without purpose of gain for its members and any profits or other accretions to the organization shall be used solely to promote the objectives.", in accordance with the requirements of the Province of Ontario.

2.01 To promote, encourage and govern amateur baseball within the boundaries of the KTBA as recognized by the Eastern Ontario Baseball Association.

2.02 To teach fair play and sportsmanship and to develop the skills of the participants in its charge.

2.03 To have and exercise a general care, supervision and direction over players, coaches and managers, teams, and officials of KTBA with emphasis on the enhancement of good character and citizenship.

2.04 To co-operate and work with the ruling bodies of other baseball associations under the jurisdiction of the Eastern Ontario Baseball Association and/or Baseball Canada and/or Ontario Baseball Association.

ARTICLE 3: MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

3.01 Legal guardians of each registered player (maximum one per player under the age of sixteen years of age) shall be considered members of the Association and shall have one vote at all general meetings, if in good standing.

3.02 Registered players aged sixteen (16) years and older shall be considered members of KTBA and shall have one vote at all general meetings, if in good standing.

3.03 Officers of the Board, Executive Committee, House League Conveners, Team Officials (Including KTBA approved umpires), all active Presidents and Life Members shall who are not having voting privileges under 3.01 and 3.02 shall have one vote each at all general meetings.

***In accordance with a motion passed at the KTBA AGM, on the 18th day of September, 2006, and carried, IT WAS RESOLVED "Pursuant to and in accordance with the Ontario Baseball Association rules and regulations, which is the governing body of Kingston Thunder Baseball and the Eastern Ontario Baseball Association of which Kingston Thunder Baseball is a charter member, any one, meaning by definition player, parents, guardian or volunteer that is not in good standing with any of the three aforementioned Associations, will and can be refused membership and all voting rights

with the Kingston Thunder Baseball Association. The definition of “not in good standing” to be determined by the elected Executive Board, from time to time. No appeal of their decision is permitted.

ARTICLE 4: FISCAL YEAR

4.01 The fiscal year of the KTBA shall commence on the 1st day of January and end on the 31st day of December.

ARTICLE 5: THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: (Board of Management)

The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the following All Life Members and all active past presidents, and the following **elected** Executive Officers: *** Unless appointed

- President
- Director – House League
- Director – Representative Baseball
- Secretary
- Treasurer
- Registrar
- Fund Raising
- Equipment
- Uniforms (house/rep/select)
- Member at Large

The President, Director of House League Baseball, Director of Representative Baseball, Secretary, Treasurer, Fund Raising Chair, Registrar, Uniforms, Member at Large and Equipment, shall be nominated and elected at the Annual General Meeting. Should one of these elective offices become vacant, the Executive Committee shall convene and appoint a replacement to fill the vacant office until the next General Meeting. The Appointee shall have the same terms and conditions as Appointed Members of the Board.

The term of office for the Elected Executive Directors shall commence no later than the 1st day of January following the Annual General Meeting and conclude on the 31st day of December. Those Executive Directors not re-elected to the same office and having completed their duties for the current year may elect to allow the Director-Elect to take his or her place on the Executive Committee before the 1st day of January. Except for the Director of Representative Baseball, all Executive Directors not re-elected to the same office must relinquish their office to the Director-Elect no later than the 1st day of January. The Director of Representative Baseball may be required to remain an executive Director beyond the 1st day of January to fulfill commitments to the Eastern Ontario Baseball Association. In this situation, the Director-Elect shall commence his or her term of office on the 1st day of January and will become KTBA’s official representative to the EOBA on the day of the EOBA Annual General Meeting.

*** By EOBA motion of January 2006, the local representative of the membership of the

EOBA shall serve from November 1st to October 31st in each year, to coincide with the change of year end date of Baseball Ontario and Eastern Ontario Baseball Association.

The Executive Committee-Elect (Board of Management) may meet at any time following the Annual General Meeting to appoint any members of the Executive Officers as referred to herein. The term of office for Executive Officers appointed by the 31st day of December shall commence no later than the 1st day of January. Those appointed Executive Officers not re-appointed to the same position and having completed their duties for the current year may elect to allow the Officer-Designate to take his or her position on the Board before the 1st day of January. The term of office for Executive Officers appointed after the 1st day of January shall commence immediately upon appointment. All appointed Executive Officers not re-appointed to the same position must relinquish their office no later than the 31st day of December.

Each elected Executive Director and Officer must live within the boundaries of KTBA as recognized by the EOBA and/or be a member of KTBA. Exceptions to the residence rule must be approved by a 2/3 vote of all Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 6: MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: (hereinafter referred to as the Board of Management)

6.01 The Executive Committee shall meet at the request of the President to conduct the business of the association under the following guidelines:

- a) Five (5) elected members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum, provided that at least 3 of them are elected/acclaimed in the year in which the meeting is called.
- b) The Executive Committee shall approve and appoint all the Executive Officers, who shall be answerable to the Executive Committee which will consist of but not limited to the following: House League Conveners, Umpire Committee members, Coach and Player Development, Public Relations and Promotional, Diamond Improvements, and all subcommittees therein, and all team managers, coaches and all subcommittee members that are not members of the Executive Committee.
- c) The Executive Committee shall establish all subcommittees and all Committees shall at least one member of the Executive Committee.
- d) The Executive Committee shall review all committee and subcommittee reports and consider all recommendations for adoption.
- e) The Executive Committee shall develop and adopt policies, procedures and rules governing the operation of KTBA which once adopted shall remain in effect until amended, changed, or deleted by the Executive Committee if they do not constitute a change to the Constitution.
- f) The Executive Committee may create additional positions of responsibility which may or may not be filled by a member of the Executive Committee or Executive Director. The Executive Committee may create from time-to-time subcommittees which

may meet at the direction of the Directors/officers and Board and must report monthly to the Executive Committee as directed.

- g) The Executive Committee is responsible for all financial issues, including but not limited to funds received and disbursed.
- h) A simple majority of a vote by the Executive Committee shall constitute an acceptance of any vote except where specifically stated otherwise in this Constitution.
- i) Any motion which constitutes an amendment or change to the constitution must be supported by a two-thirds vote of the Executive Committee of the complete Executive Committee and any motion adopted shall only remain in effect until the next General meeting when it is to be approved by the membership at large.
- j) An Executive Committee (Executive Director) or Officer may be removed from chronic absenteeism from meeting or for conduct detrimental to the good and welfare of KTBA upon the adoption of such motion by a two thirds majority vote of all Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 7: DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Each member of the Executive Committee shall keep an accurate record of all business within their charge and will be prepared to present a report at all meetings of the Executive Committee or when requested to do so by the President.

Life Members and Past Presidents shall

- Act as Advisor(s) to the Executive Committee and perform such duties as may be assigned by the President and/or Executive Committee and shall have voice and vote at all meetings of the Executive Committee, Executive Directors' meetings or all Board meetings and General, Special meetings.

The President shall:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee who must have at least two years membership of the Executive Committee prior to nomination for this position.
- Chair all Executive meetings
- Call a meeting of the Executive Committee at least once every two months, or at the request of two more members of the executive.
- Be an ex-officer of all subcommittees
- Have signing authority on all bank accounts
- Insure that KTBA is represented at all meetings of the EOBA should the Director of Representative Baseball be unable to attend.

- Chair all Protest and Discipline Hearings, except where conflict occurs.

The Director of House League:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee who must have at least two years membership of the Executive Committee prior to nomination for this position. By motion made in 2018, this was amended to read” - Director of House League must have served at least one year membership on the Board, an elected or appointed position, prior to nomination for this position.
- Co-ordinate the general operation of all House Leagues
- Seek out persons willing to serve as House League Conveners and make recommendations to the Executive Committee for their appointment
- With the Assistance of the House League Conveners solicit applications for team managers/coaches and make recommendations to the Executive Committee for their appointment.
- Provide advice and assistance to the House League Conveners.
- Ensure that all house league convener’s policies, procedures, and rules pertaining to their division.
- May sit on the Public Relations and Promotional Committee
- May sit on the Protest and Discipline Committee, if applicable.
- May sit on the Scheduling Committee, if applicable
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee
- Perform the duties of the President in his/her absence.

The Director of Representative Baseball shall:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee who must have at least one year’s membership on the Board prior to nomination for this position. (2018)
- Represent KTBA and its representative team interests at all EOBA meetings or inform the President if unable to attend a meeting so an alternate may represent KTBA.
- Coordinate the general operation of the representative baseball program.
- Solicit applications for team manager/coaches and make recommendations for their appointment and Board approval.
- Ensure that all team managers and coaches have the required coaching certification.
- Ensure that all team managers and coaches are familiarized with EOBA and OBA playing rules and any policies, procedures, or rules of KTBA which may affect their team or players.

- Assist team managers/coaches with the carding of players and ensure that all requirements and deadlines are met when submitting team entries and rosters to the EOBA.
- Assist team managers/coaches at the EOBA in respect to scheduling
- May sit on the Protest and Discipline Committee, if applicable.
- May sit on the Public Relations and Promotional Committee.
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

And pursuant to an Amendment to the Constitution approved in October of 2018, the Director of Representative Ball shall be responsible for the following:

Select Ontario Baseball

- Be responsible for both Tournament SOBA teams, as well as regular season league teams under EOBA/SOBA.
- Represent KTBA and its representative team interests at all SOBA meetings or inform the President if unable to attend a meeting so an alternate may represent KTBA.
- Coordinate the general operation of the Select baseball program.
- Solicit applications for team manager/coaches and make recommendations for their appointment for board approval.
- Ensure that all team managers and coaches have the required coaching certification.
- Ensure that all team managers and coaches are familiarized with EOBA/SOBA and OBA playing rules and any policies, procedures, or rules of KTBA which may affect their team or players.
- Assist team managers/coaches with the carding of players and ensure that all requirements and deadlines are met when submitting team entries and rosters to the Ontario Baseball
- Assist team managers/coaches at the SOBA in respect to scheduling if regular season league teams/and/or assisting with tournaments.

The Secretary shall:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee
- Be the custodian of all records and documents of the association
- Keep an accurate record of all General and Executive Committee and Board meetings and Committee reports
- Carry out correspondence at the Direction of the President
- Be responsible for assisting in tracking and maintaining all registration information, including fees, if required, and the compiling an accurate mailing list
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

- Chair the Nominating Committee from year to year.
- The Secretary and Treasurer positions may be held by the same person, as determined from year to year, but neither the Secretary nor Treasurer can hold that position and be Registrar.

The Treasurer shall:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee
- Receive and disburse all league funds in the best interest of KTBA, including but not limited to licenses, permits, fees by governing bodies, and the day-to-day operation of the association, including all reports to municipalities and governing authorities.
- Operate all bank accounts for KTBA and cheques to be authorized by at least two members of the Executive Committee who shall have signing authority which members are to be approved from year to year.
- Keep accurate records and present a proper financial statement at all General meetings.
- Sit on the Fund-Raising Committee, and obtain and receive and provide written approval for all expenditures based on financial availability
- Prepare and fill all reports as necessary for all financial matters within the KTBA structure, and keep records of the same, including but not limited to all accounts both general and trust
- Be responsible to all members in respect to independent accounting for specific events/teams/or approved by Executive Committee groups.
- The Secretary and Treasurer positions may be held by the same person, as determined from year to year, but neither the Secretary nor Treasurer can hold that position and be Registrar.

The Registrar shall

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee
- Receive all registrations for the membership of the KTBA and maintain all records, confidentially, in respect to membership of minor youth.
- Shall maintain a list of all members from year to year,
- Shall maintain a contact list of all members
- Shall receive all registration funds and supply the Treasurer of the KTBA with an accounting of funds as received.
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- May sit on the Public Relations and Promotional Committee

The Equipment Manager:

- Be an elected member of the Executive Committee
- Be responsible for the purchase, maintenance, repair, replacement, distribution, collection, and storage of all equipment owned by KTBA.
- Keep an inventory of all equipment owned by KTBA.
- Keep a record of all equipment issued to each player or coach and of the return of all equipment
- Prepare a list of unreturned equipment at the conclusion of each season.
- Prepare and present proposals for the purchase of replacement and additional equipment for consideration by the Executive committee.
- Sit on the Fund-Raising committee
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

The Fund-Raising Chair:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee
- Receive all fund-raising league funds and provide the Treasurer with an accounting of all events, and funds raised;
- Keep accurate records of funds received and disbursed;
- Chair the Fund-Raising Committee and obtain and receive and provide written approval for all fund-raising events based on municipal/provincial approved events.
- Assist the Treasurer in respect to proposals for the Executive Committee's consideration in respect to capital improvements/expenditures
- Be responsible for the seeking and approval of all sponsorship and the acknowledgement of the same in accordance with the guidelines of Baseball Canada
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee and perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Member At Large:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee

- With the assistance of all members, carry out the functions of the Board as mandated or directed by policy of the Executive Committee.
- Report to the Executive committee the business/reports as assigned to him/her
- By the member of the Board who assists in all vacancies if necessary and as directed.
- Act as requested and perform such duties assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Uniform Manager shall:

- Be an elected member of the Executive committee
- Be responsible for the purchase, maintenance, repair, replacement, distribution, collection, and storage of all uniforms owned by KTBA.
- Keep an inventory of all uniforms owned by KTBA.
- Keep a record of all uniforms issued to each player or coach and of the return of all uniforms.
- Prepare a list of unreturned uniforms at the conclusion of each season so the outstanding return of these uniforms or the cashing of uniform deposit cheques may be completed.
- Prepare and present proposals for the purchase of replacement and additional uniforms for consideration by the Executive committee.
- May sit on the Fund-Raising committee, if necessary
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee:

ARTICLE 8: DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Executive Committee may appoint additional members to the KTBA Board which shall hereinafter be referred to as Officers of the KTBA, at the discretion and need to the KTBA from year to year. (The Board shall consist of all Executive Committee members (Directors), and Officers as appointed as deemed necessary. The appointed members shall be referred to as Executive Officers, and their positions shall be Umpire Committee, Diamond Improvements, Public Relations and Promotion, Coaching and Player and Development, House League and Division Conveners

Each member that is an Executive Officer shall keep an accurate record of all business within their charge and will be prepared to present a report at all meetings of the Executive Committee or when requested to do so by the President. If necessary and at the discretion of the Executive Directors, the Officers' positions may be filled by a member of the Executive Committee.

House League/Division Conveners:

- Be an appointed Executive Officer by the Directors
- Coordinate the general operation of their division.
- Assist the Director of House League in soliciting applications for team managers/coaches and making recommendations to the Executive Committee for their appointment.
- Provide advice and assistance to the team managers/coaches within their division.
- Ensure that all team managers/coaches are familiarized with the current policies, procedures, and rules pertaining to their division.
- Be responsible for the creation of team rosters and attempt to balance the teams within their division.
- Assist in respect to all stats in respect to their division
- Assist in play offs/house league tournaments
- Be responsible for the reporting of all stats as directed to necessary and approved media
- Perform the duties required by the House League Director
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Umpiring Committee:

- Shall consist of President and umpiring scheduler and four accredited Umpires, with one of them holding the highest accreditation that is available to sit on this committee which appointment shall be from year to year. As this position shall now be a Committee, the Committee shall decide who shall be attending the monthly meetings when required and this shall be advised to the Secretary of the Association 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.
- The Committee's duties shall consist of:
- Be accredited by Baseball Canada for umpiring as is available to the Executive Committee

- Assist in respect to training and evaluation, in connection with the Umpiring Committee for all umpires employed by KTBA, including but not limited to training, scheduling, payroll, attendance and discipline, evaluation
- Be responsible for Board, both Directors and Officers and coaches/umpires in every division have access to all Rules of Baseball Ontario and the upgrading of the same, and act as a resource person for the same.
- Sit on any all-discipline committee Hearings/Appeal
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Coaching and Player Development (this position may be held by two different individuals who will work together to fulfill the requirements as set out below. Should two parties hold this position, both will be allowed voting privileges at meetings of the Board of the KTBA)

- Be an Executive Officer(s) appointed by the Directors
- Coordinate the training and assisting of all coaches and act as resource person in respect to training/practices, games, and all matters that would assist coaching staff at every level, both in house league, Select Baseball and Representative Baseball and assist with general operation of teams
- Assist all Representative Coaches/staffs and Select Baseball in respect to tryouts and teams, and rosters
- Ensure that all team managers/coaches/convenors are familiarized with the current policies, procedures, and rules pertaining to their division.
- Be responsible for the creation of team rosters and attempt to balance the teams within their division.
- Perform the duties required by the House League Director
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Diamond Improvements.

- Be an Executive Officer appointed by the Directors

- Be responsible for the purchase, maintenance, repair, replacement, distribution, collection, and storage of all items in respect to diamonds used by KTBA.
- Keep an inventory of all diamond maintenance items owned by KTBA.
- Keep a record of all equipment issued to each player or coach and of the return of all equipment for diamonds
- Prepare a list of unreturned equipment at the conclusion of each season.
- Prepare and present proposals for the purchase of replacement equipment/diamonds items for consideration by the Executive committee, including but not limited to diamonds, including any and all items, including batting cages.
- Assist in respect to the employees of the KTBA that are employed for diamond lining, maintenance, etc
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

Public Relations and Promotion

- Be an Executive Officer appointed by the Directors
- Coordinate the general operation of the media and all social media in respect to KTBA., and approval of the same for distribution
- Assist in the creation and ordering and assisting the Treasurer and Fund-Raising Chair in respect to advertising, both on and off fields, and other facilities used by KTBA,
- Assist in respect to preparation and distribution of newsletters and correspondence with membership.
- Create a sub-committee to assist in duties with members approved by the Executive Committee
- Perform such duties as assigned by the President and/or the Executive Committee

9.00 ARTICLES – ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

9.01 An Annual General Meeting date shall be called by the President between the 1st of August and the 30th of October each year, for the following purposes: (and must be held no later than November 1st in each year)

- a. To elect the Executive Officers for the next year.

- b. To consider formal motions from the membership of the Association.
 - c. To provide a forum between the Executive Committee and the membership for discussion of Association business and programs.
- 9.02 Any member of the Association wishing to put forth a motion to amend this constitution, or on any other matter, shall advise the Secretary in writing at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Annual General Meeting.
- 9.03 the Secretary shall notify the membership of the Annual general Meeting by placing public notices at the home fields of KTBA at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting and before the end of KTBA house league play.
- 9.04 The President shall preside over the Annual General Meeting. The meeting shall be conducted in an orderly manner and all members shall abide by the procedural rulings of the President.
- 9.05 Motions voted upon shall be considered passed if a majority of members present agree by a show of hands when the vote is called.
- 9.06 Only motions passed under Article 8 shall be considered binding by the Executive Committee. All other motions shall be considered as advice and direction and shall not be binding.
- 9.07 The agenda of the Annual General Meeting shall be as follows:
 - a. Check of voting privileges.
 - b. Presidents welcome address and Report
 - c. Reading of the minutes of the previous General Meeting
 - d. Discussion of minutes
 - e. Reading of outstanding correspondence.
 - f. Report of the Secretary
 - g. Report of the Treasurer
 - h. Report of the Registrar
 - i. Report of the Director – House League Baseball
 - j. Report of the Director – Representative Baseball
 - k. Consideration of motions
 - l. Election of Executive Committee
 - m. New business
 - n. Adjournment
- 9.08 Only members of KTBA as set out under Article 3 shall have voice and vote at General Meetings.

9.09 Non-members may attend General Meetings with the permission of the Executive committee,

10.00 ARTICLE 10 – SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

10.01 A Special General Meeting shall be called in the following manner:

- a. By vote of the Executive Committee.
- b. By request of fifteen percent (15%) of the membership of KTBA by mail to the secretary.

10.02 All by-laws governing the Annual General Meeting shall govern a Special General Meeting, except that the term of office for any Executive Directors elected at a Special General Meeting shall commence immediately following the meeting and conclude on the 31st day of December.

11.00 ARTICLE 11 – NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

11.01 Prior to the General Meeting, the Executive Committee shall appoint a nominating committee of at least 3 members of the association, with the Secretary of KTBA being the Chairperson of the Committee. It is preferable that the other members of the Nominating Committee do not stand for election to the Executive committee. The Nominating committee shall attempt to ensure that at least one member is nominated for each office and that those nominees have consented to allow their name to stand for election.

11.02 Nominations from the floor will not be accepted at the General Meeting as all nominations where the consent of the nominee is obtained and the said nominee is in good standing, are to be presented to the Nominating Committee 30 days before the date of the called annual meeting, and all nominations are in accordance with the Roberts Rules of Order as declared by Baseball Canada, and proxies are not allowed.

11.03 The Nominating committee shall prepare the ballots for the election.

11.04 The Nominating committee Chairperson shall act as returning officer for the election. The addition Nominating Committee members shall act as scrutinizers during the count of the ballots. The count is to be kept confidential and the ballots are to be destroyed after the elections have been completed.

- 11.05 The elections shall be by secret ballot. A majority vote is required to elect anyone. If there are more than two candidates running for any office, a majority vote overall is still required to elect anyone.
- 11.06 The Position of President of KTBA must be an elected member of the association who has held a position for not less than a two-year term, but not necessarily in the prior two years.
- 11.07 The Executive Committee shall be elected in the following order:
- President
 - Director of House League
 - Director of Representative Baseball
 - Secretary
 - Treasurer
 - Registrar
 - Equipment
 - Uniforms
 - Fund Raising Chair
 - Member At Large
- 11.08 The known nominees shall be announced, and no nominations will be allowed from the floor. All nominations must be to the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee not less than 30 days prior to the date of the annual meetings.
- 11.09 Ballots for each office shall be counted and the results announced, and a candidate shall be declared elected before proceeding with the next election. As no nominations will be received after 30 days prior to the meeting, the Nominating Chair will advise and seek recommendations for appointed positions for the Executive Committee and all members and shall supply the incoming Executive Committee with the list of recommendations.
- 11.10 Defeated candidates shall be able to stand for any other office if they so desire.
- 11.11 In the event of a tie vote, the deciding vote shall be cast by the Nominating Chairperson.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (DIRECTORS) ELECTED * SEE DUTIES**

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ALL PAST PRESIDENTS

ALL LIFE MEMBERS

PRESIDENT

DIRECTOR OF REP

DIRECTOR OF HOUSE LEAGUE

SECRETARY

TREASURER

REGISTRAR EQUIPMENT

MEMBER AT LARGE

UNIFORMS

EQUIPMENT

FUND RAISING

(This group of people are personally responsible as a Board to the membership but in order to do the carrying out of the day-to-day business must have additional parties (hereinafter referred to as "Officers of the Association" which are appointed by them to full such duties as are deemed necessary.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS (APPOINTED) * SEE DUTIES**

PUBLIC RELATIONS

UMPIRE COMMITTEE

HOUSE LEAGUE DIVISION CONVENERS

COACHING AND PLAYER DEVELOPMENT (2)

DIAMOND IMPROVEMENTS

AND OTHER COMMITTEE CHAIRS AS DECIDED FROM TIME TO TIME BY BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT

**** ANY ELECTED POSITION NOT FILLED AT ANNUAL MEETING MAY BE
FILLED BY AN APPOINTMENT OF THE BOARD MANAGEMENT.